
CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE:  5:30 PM 
 
a. Good of the Order 
b. 2016 Q4 Financial Report 
c. 2017 Q1 Budget Amendment 
d. Big Rock Annexation 
 

WRITTEN REPORTS: 

 WWTP Portable Pump Purchase 

 Big Rock Ballfields proposed restroom/concession facility 
 
 

CITY OF DUVALL 
COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

March 21, 2017 
7:00 PM  

Riverview Educational Service Center – 15510 – 1st Ave NE 
 
Call to Order 
 
Flag Salute 
 
Roll Call 

 
I. Additions or Corrections to the Agenda: 
 
II. Adoption of the Council Agenda: 
 
III. Consent Agenda: 

Items listed below will be enacted by one motion.  If separate discussion is desired on an item, that item 
may be removed from the Consent Agenda and placed on the regular Agenda at the request of a 
Councilmember. 

1. Council Minutes and Committee of the Whole Minutes for March 7, 2017;  
2. Payroll for March 1-15, 2017, in the amount of $     

               (to be provided) 

3. Claims in the amount of $      
     (to be provided) 

 
IV. Comments from the Audience: 
 
V. Scheduled Items: 

1.  Mayor:  
 

2. Council: 
 

3. City Administrator 
a) Town Hall Meeting follow up 
b) Regional Animal Control 

 



4. Main Street Project Update 
 
5. King County Fire District #45 
 

VI. Presentation:   Duvall Library Board 
 
VII. Public Hearing: Big Rock Annexation 10% Petition (continued)  
 

Public Hearing: Emergency Moratorium on Residential Development 
 
VIII. New Business: 

1. (AB17-32) Ordinance - 2017 Q1 Budget Amendment 
discussion – D. Rohla 
 
2. (AB17-33) Resolution - Surplus 
discussion – B. Benson 
 

 
IX. Executive Session: 10 minutes - Discussion of qualifications of applicants for the open  

City Council Position.  RCW 42.30.110(1)(h) 
 
5 minutes – Current or Potential Litigation.  RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) 

 
VIII. New Business (continued): 

3. (AB17-34) Vote by matrix to narrow applicant field to three for Duvall City Council 
vacant position #5, a term ending upon certification of the November 2017, General 
Election. 
 
4. (AB17-35) Approve and authorize the Mayor to sign legal services retention 
agreement with Keating, Bucklin and McCormack. 
discussion/decision – M. Morton 

 
5. (AB17-36) Direct staff regarding options for Emergency Moratorium on Residential 
Development. 
discussion/decision – M. Morton 

 
X. Unfinished Business:  

1. (AB17-29) Ordinance - Park Impact Fee 
discussion – B. Benson 
 
2. (AB17-24) Approve Resolution approving the Cherry Valley Village Final Long Plat, 
SU06-001. 
discussion/decision – B. Benson 
 
3. (AB17-25) Approve Resolution approving the Allen Street Village Final Long Plat, 
SU06-006. 
discussion/decision – B. Benson 
 



4. (AB17-30) Accept the land transfer and authorize the Mayor and/or staff to execute 
the Agreement for Conveyance and the Escrow Agreement. 
discussion/decision – M. Morton 
 
5. (AB17-21) Big Rock Annexation 10% Petition 
discussion – L. Thomas 
 

XII. Adjournment 





















troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 35

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text

troy.davis
Typewritten Text



troy.davis
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 36



mailto:lara.thomas@duvallwa.gov
mailto:Anne.Wright-Cunniff@duvallwa.gov
mailto:Lara.thomas@duvallwa.gov
mailto:bhairavijay@hotmail.com
troy.davis
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 37





















troy.davis
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 38



From: Becky Nixon <becky.nixon @duvallwa.gov> 
Date: 3/8/17 9:45 AM (GMT -08:00) 
T o: Amy McHenry <amymchenry@ hotmail.com>, Amy Ockerlander <amy.ockerlander@duvallwa.gov>, 
Matthew Morton <matthew.morton@duvall wa.gov> 
Cc: Lara Thomas <lara.thomas@duvallwa.gov> 
Subject: RE: Public Comment for Big Rock Annexation 10% Petition 

Amy, 

The city doesn 't own either parcel. They are owned by families. The families are selling them to developers, as 
is their right. They WILL NOT sell them to the city. The Mayor has had that conversation with them. They 
publically stated they wi ll not sell to the city. We are never going to be able to expand the park without the 
annexation . We should have purchased the land or made an offer back in 2008 when the land was worth less. 
Which brings me to another problem, the city doesn't have the money, nor did they have the money to purchase 
the land. The houses in the pipeline? They are not being built tomorrow, maybe not nex t year or in three years; 
probably about 50 to 100 per year, IF the market holds. There are so many "if''s. 
It isn't about money. It never has been. It's about what's legal, fair, and best fo r the community. 
I wish council had the luxury of idealism, but the majority of council doesn't have a personal agenda, and we're 
trying to forsee what is best for the future of Duvall. 
Last night after public testimoney, it became very clear we need to educate the public on the law, annexations, 
and how the whole big picture is formed, including developement and negotiating the best we can with 
developers to eek out every single parking space, ammenity, and have growth pay for growth. 
If I sound frustrated, I am. The public seems to believe, and is being led to believe, that we can just stop growth. 
Nothing is further from the truth. 
The City of Duvall is deperately trying to manage the growth and get as much as we can for our citizens. 
I appreciate your input and opinions on the matter. 
Sincerely, 

Councilmember Becky A Nixon 

Sent rr11m 111) Vcri tllll -+G LTE "mart phonc 

-------- Original message --------
From: Amy McHenry <amymchenry @hotmail.com> 
Date: 317117 4:46PM (GMT-08:00) 
To: Will Ibershof <will.ibershof@duvallwa.gov>, Amy Ockerlander <amy.ockerlander@duvall wa.gov>, Becky 
Nixon <becky. nixon @duvall wa.gov>, Dianne Brudnicki <dianne.brudnicki @duvall wa.gov>, Leroy 
Collinwood <leroy.collinwood@duvallwa.gov>, Scott Thomas <scott.thomas@duvallwa.gov>, Jason Walker 
<jason.walker@duvallwa.gov>, Troy Davis < troy.davis@duvallwa.gov> 
Subject: Public Comment for Big Rock Annexation I 0% Petition 

Mayor lbershof and Councilmembers, 

I have previously submitted a comment on this issue, but wanted to add a little more. 

Firstly, I really like the idea of a sma ll and large dog park and add itional play space. Of course more parking is 
great. However, I did want to make the point, because I have heard emphasis on the need for parking, that I 

2 



don't believe the extra parking provided in the proposal is worth accepting the petition . I know that if we do 
not accept this petition the land owners may develop under King County and this opportunity could be lost. I 
do understand that perspective, but I know that if the proposed housing on both sides of Big Rock Sports Park 
is allowed, then future expansion will most certainly be off the table. 

To the point of parking, I'd like to reference back to my personal experience living by East Sammamish Park. It 
has a huge parking lot that is not enough even on a non-game day now that Sammamish has increased density 
without ample park space. Another large sport field park, Central Park in the Issaquah Highlands, has a large 
amount of street parking, a small lot by the playground and a large amount of diagonal spots on the far side. It 
is also a highly walkable area, but on game days parking still overflows into all the neighborhoods. My point is 
simply that parking will always be an issue. Even if we accept this petition, you will still see parking overflowing 
onto the streets. You just can't predict when everyone's grandparents will show up to the game on the same 
day. I would be interested to hear from the City of Redmond if people still street park on game nights at 
Perrigo Park even after their parking expansion was built. That would be a good reference. 

So while some features of the proposal are nice, I still do not want the City of Duvall to accept this petition. I 
look at Marymoor Park (yes, I realize that scale is not realistic for Duvall) and I see large fields, massive 
amounts of parking, trails, dog park, critical areas and a vast open space park. If we take this offer, we will lose 
our chance of a larger facility. We need more fields and park space, first and foremost, parking is a secondary 
concern. Focusing on parking a few small additions distract from what we will lose for certain if we accept. 

Thank you for your time in reading this, 

Amy McHenry 
14208 284th PL NE 

Duvall, WA 98019 

3 



 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

re: 

 

Emergency Moratorium on  

Residential Development 

 
 

 



CITY OF DUVALL 
 WASHINGTON 

 ORDINANCE NO.  1213       

              

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF DUVALL, 

WASHINGTON, ADOPTING A SIXTY-DAY EMERGENCY 

MORATORIUM ON THE ACCEPTANCE OF NEW 

RESIDENTIAL PLAT APPLICATIONS WITHIN THE CITY 

OF DUVALL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND ESTABLISHING AN 

IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Duvall (the “City”) is in the process of updating its Sensitive Areas 

Ordinance (SAO), Tree Protection Standards, and associated zoning amendments in accordance 

with the City’s recently adopted Comprehensive Plan and Watershed Plan polices, and Washington 

State Growth Management Act (GMA) requirements (RCW 36.70A).  The SAO is codified within 

the Duvall Municipal Code (DMC) as Chapter 14.42, Sensitive Areas; Tree Protection standards 

are codified within the DMC as Chapter 14.40.  An additional primary purpose of this project is to 

better integrate the City’s development standards across DMC Title 14 (Unified Development 

Regulations) to better ensure the protection of existing sensitive areas, trees, and forest canopy 

within the City through implementation of innovative techniques, incentives, and Watershed Plan 

recommendations. All of these updates articulate and implement the community vision of the City 

of Duvall 2015 Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Growth Management Act calls for the coordination 

between local, regional and state planning efforts. To advance this coordination, state law requires 

the Puget Sound Regional Council (the “PRSC”) to certify that regional plans, countywide 

planning policies, and local comprehensive plans within the Central Puget Sound region; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Duvall has received Conditional Certification of its 

Comprehensive Plan from the PRSC on January 26, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, such Conditional Certification is in place until the City of Duvall completes 

updates to its Comprehensive Plan to fully address required components of the transportation 

element per RCW 36.70A.070(6), which shall be completed on or before December 21, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to gain full certification of its Comprehensive Plan from the PSRC, 

the City of Duvall must update inventories of existing transportation facilities. Inventories should 

include detailed information, including maps of roadways, transit facilities and routes, trails, 

sidewalks, bicycle facilities and routes, and other relevant facilities and services; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to gain full certification of its Comprehensive Plan from the PSRC, 

the City of Duvall must update land use assumptions used in estimating future travel demand. The 

GMA requires that travel demand forecasts and transportation need assessments be based on land 

use assumptions that correspond with the most recently adopted growth targets. These population 

and employment assumptions must be consistent throughout the various Comprehensive Plan 

elements (RCW 36.70A.070(6)(a)(i)). The King County targets indicate that, when adjusted for 



recent growth and a planning period that extends to 2035, Duvall is expected to plan for and 

accommodate approximately 1,000 additional housing units and 750 additional jobs. The adopted 

plan assumes growth of approximately 1,200 housing units and 1,800 jobs. The City is in the 

process of updating the land use analysis for an updated transportation plan, including future 

employment growth that is closer to the adopted targets; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to gain full certification of its Comprehensive Plan from the PSRC, 

the City must include a complete and updated multiyear investment and financing plan for 

transportation. The GMA (see RCW 36.70A.070(6)) requires that the transportation element 

include a financing plan that addresses, project needs and cost estimates for roadway, pedestrian, 

and bicycle improvements identified in the plan for the 20-year planning period. An estimate of 

revenue available for transportation over the 20-year planning period. A reassessment strategy to 

document steps the city could take to close the gap, if any, between costs and revenues, such as 

additional demand management strategies, pursuing new revenues, reducing level-of-service 

standards, and land use changes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the aforementioned updates, policies, plans and documents must take priority 

over any new residential plat applications to allow sufficient staff time and resources to complete 

the required code and policy updates, to ensure the PSRC full compliance deadlines are achieved, 

and to help ensure that future growth does not threaten the public health, safety, and welfare; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 35.63.200, the City Council may adopt a moratorium, 

without holding a public hearing on the proposed moratorium, but must hold a public hearing on 

the adopted moratorium within at least sixty days of its adoption; and 

 

WHEREAS, a moratorium adopted pursuant to RCW 35.63.200, may be effective for not 

longer than six months, but may be effective for up to one year if a work plan is developed for 

related studies providing for such a longer period; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to provide the City with sufficient time and resources to obtain PRSC 

Comprehensive Plan Certification, to complete the required Sensitive Areas, Tree Protection Plan 

Updates and associated zoning amendments, and to protect the public health, safety and welfare, 

the City Council deems it appropriate to impose a moratorium on the acceptance of residential plat 

applications for a period of sixty days; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DUVALL, 

WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1.  Findings of Fact.  The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted as the City 

Council’s initial findings of fact in support of the moratorium established by this Ordinance.  The 

City Council may, in its discretion, adopt additional findings after the public hearing referenced 

in Section 4 below.   



 Section 2.  Moratorium Imposed.  As authorized by the Growth Management Act, RCW 

35A.63.220, a moratorium is hereby enacted on the acceptance of any new residential plat 

applications.  

 

Section 3.  Vested Rights.  The moratorium imposed in Section 2 shall not apply to any 

rights that have vested prior to the effected date of this Ordinance.  

 

Section 4.  Effective Duration of Moratorium.  The moratorium set forth in this 

Ordinance shall be in effect for a period of sixty (60) days from the effective date of this 

Ordinance and shall automatically expire at the conclusion of that sixty-day period unless 

extended at the public hearing, or sooner repealed. If the requirements of RCW 35.63.200 are 

met, the moratorium may be extended for up to a total of one-year from the effective date of this 

Ordinance. 

 

Section 5.  Public Hearing.  The City Council will hold a public hearing at the City 

Council’s regular meeting beginning at 7:00 p.m. on March 21, 2017, or as soon thereafter as the 

business of the City Council shall permit, in order to take public testimony and to consider 

adopting further findings of fact, or whether to extend the moratorium for six (6) months 

inclusive of the effective date of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance, be declared unconstitutional or 

otherwise invalid for any reason, or should any portion of this Ordinance be pre-empted by state 

or federal law or regulation, such decision or pre-emption shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portions of this Ordinance or its application to other persons or circumstances. 

 

Section 7.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance, as a public emergency ordinance necessary 

for the protection of the public health, public safety, public property, and public peace, shall take 

effect and be in full force immediately upon its adoption.  Pursuant to Matson v. Clark County 

Board of Commissioners, 79 Wn. App. 641, 904 P.2d 317 (1995), non-exhaustive underlying 

facts necessary to support this emergency declaration are included in the “WHEREAS” clauses, 

above, all of which are adopted by reference as findings of fact as if fully set forth herein.   

 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF ON THE 21st 

DAY OF FEBRUARY 2017. 
 

       CITY OF DUVALL 

       ______________________________ 

       Will Ibershof, Mayor 

Approved as to form:           

  

______________________________  ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED: 

Rachel B. Turpin, City Attorney 

       ______________________________ 

       Jodi Wycoff, City Clerk 

 
Passed by the City Council: 

Ordinance No. 

Date of Publication:   



FUTURE SUCCESS ENTERPRISE, LLC
8115 NE 8th Street

Medina, WA  98039

March 13, 2017

Mr. Will Ibershof, Mayor
City Council
City of Duvall
15535 Main Street NE
Duvall, WA  98019

Re:  Residential Preliminary Plat Moratorium 

Dear Mr. Ibershof and City Council:

I am informed that the City Council adopted an emergency 60 day moratorium on plat applications 
on February 21, 2017 and that a hearing is to take place on March 21, 2017 to discuss this 
moratorium and whether it will be extended beyond the 60 days.

My company is a landowner in Duvall, as we purchased property on NE 145th Street which is zoned 
R-12 and Commercial.  We bought the property with the intent to immediately develop it according 
to the zoning, and have had numerous meetings with the City to discuss this development, including 
two “pre-application” meetings.  This moratorium is harmful to us and we are requesting that you 
do not extend it.  If extended, it will cause increased financial hardship on us therefore we are 
against it.

We wish to develop our property in a way consistent with City objectives, so will be willing to abide 
by all new amendments to codes as contemplated by the moratorium.

Thank you.

Xin Qi
Managing Member

Xin Qi


	Exhibit 37_Batch 3 Comments.pdf
	170208 B_Vijay
	Big Rock Annexation and future development
	Fw  Big Rock Annexation Petition
	FW Letter of Support for Big Roc Park Land Annexation
	Fwd Meeting re Big Rock Annexation
	Re  City of Duvall - Parties of Record - CPA17-003




